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Project No. 3097-01 
State of Connecticut 

Office of Policy and Management 
 

Addendum 2 
 
 

1.  Qualifications clarification for joint ventures: Please note the following amended language 

from Section 2 of the Invitation to Bid concerning qualifications of bidders. The added 

language is in all caps and underlined. 

1. Qualifications of Bidders 
 

a. All bidders must hold a current Department of Administrative Services Construction Contractor 

Prequalification Certificate for the category of SITEWORK, and must be qualified for no less than $10 

million for a single project.  IF THE BIDDER IS A JOINT VENTURE,  BOTH MEMBERS MUST MEET THE 

MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS.   A copy of the bidder’s Prequalification Certificate and an Update Bid 

Statement must be submitted with the bid.  Any proposed Subcontractor whose subcontract value 

will exceed $500,000 must also hold a Construction Contractor Prequalification Certificate for the 

appropriate classification and subcontract value and must submit a copy of that Certificate and an 

Update Bid Statement with the bid.  A blank Update Bid Statement is included in Section 3 and is 

available online in hard copy at http://www.biznet.ct.gov/prequal/login/UpdateStatement.pdf.  DAS-

registered contractors can obtain a fillable version of the Update Bid Statement at 

http://www.biznet.ct.gov/dasibi/index.cfm?do=prequal_openArea.showApplications 

 

2. Please note that LAZ Parking is hereby added to the list of firms in Section 3 of the Invitation 

to Bid that are not to be contacted during the bidding period. 

 

3.  Missing/illegible documents:   

  

a) Draft Contract: Some potential bidders have noted that the draft contract included in 

the Invitation to Bid is difficult to read owing to shaded backgrounds in the AIA 

document.  A new pdf file of that document is included as Attachment 1 to this 

Addendum.  By submitting a bid for this project, bidders are acknowledging receipt of 

the contract and that they are aware of its provisions.  Bidders are also advised that the 

State Contracting Requirements” attached to the original copy of the draft contract 

pertain and are not subject to negotiation. 

 

b) OPM Vendor Profile (OPM Form A-15); Agency Vendor Form; W-9:  These forms were 

inadvertently omitted from the Invitation to Bid.  They are included as Attachments 2-4 

to this Addendum. 

 

http://www.biznet.ct.gov/prequal/login/UpdateStatement.pdf
http://www.biznet.ct.gov/dasibi/index.cfm?do=prequal_openArea.showApplications


4. With respect to the Silver Lane Site Access location shown on Sheet No. SA-1 and to the 

“Notice to Contractor - Construction Access” on p. TS-6 of the Technical Specifications, egress 

by trucks is to be only by left or right turns onto Silver Lane.  Construction vehicles are not to 

travel on Simmons Road.   

 

5. Clarification regarding detention basins:  The proposed detention basins in the North and 

South Klondikes are both wet-bottom basins.  The herbaceous plants to be provided for the 

detention basins shall be 2-inch plugs unless otherwise noted. 

 

6. The attendance sheet from the February 18, 2010 prebid meeting is attached as Attachment 5 

to this Addendum. 

  

7. Responses to questions/RFIs:  Following are responses to questions and RFIs received during 

the prebid conference and site walk on February 18, 2010 and via email.  Bidders are 

reminded that in the event oral and written responses have been provided to questions, the 

written responses prevail. 

  

Q1.  Are the limits of excavation for “dirty dirt” clear on the plans? 
 

The “Special Excavation” sheets indicate areas of known contamination. 

Q2.  Will the contractor be responsible for offsite disposal of contaminated materials? 
 

Disposal will be consistent with the ‘Notice to Contractor – Environmental’ and ‘Notice to 

Contractor – Excavated Material Management’. 

Q3.  Is the site balanced? 
 

Prospective bidders are expected to perform their own earthwork calculations and base their 

lump sum bids accordingly.  Refer to Section 2.02 of the technical specifications, Special Provision 

‘0207001A – Borrow’ and the ‘Notice to Contractor – Excavated Material Management’. 

Q4.  Is the bid format set up in such a way that the contractor can provide multiple unit prices for 
unforeseen events? 

 

Lump Sum and Unit Prices bid shall be submitted strictly in accordance with the bid forms 

provided. 

Q5.  Regarding turf establishment, where is the closest source(s) of water that may be utilized for 
irrigation? 



 

An existing water main at the Stadium will be tapped as part of the proposed work; refer to the 

utility plan sheets.  While the source of water may vary based on each prospective bidder’s 

approach, it is anticipated that water may be drawn and metered from this location. 

Q6.  Should there be a surplus of suitable materials, how shall the contractor proceed? 
 

Refer to Section 2.02 of the technical specifications, Special Provision ‘0207001A – Borrow’ and 

the ‘Notice to Contractor – Excavated Material Management’.  The intent is to re-use suitable 

material on-site to the extent practical in order to minimize haul-off.  Clean or natural soil which 

cannot be re-used on site shall become the property of the Contractor. 

Q7.  Will stripping and screening of topsoil be included in the work? 
 

Screening is specified only where noted for the playing field in the Recreation area.  The 

contractor shall grub the remaining areas and remove roots and debris in accordance with Section 

9.44.03 of the Technical Specifications.  As a clarification, the upper 6-inches of topsoil shall be 

free of roots and debris.  Screening will not be precluded. 

Q8.  Where will WSAs be established on site? 
 

Location of WSA’s shall be determined by the Contractor in accordance with his approved Site 

Logistics and Layout Plan; refer to ‘Notice to Contractor – Schedule and Site Logistics and Layout 

Plan.’ 

Q9.  There appear to be break lines on the gravel road system between the spine road and the 
interior North Klondike roads.  Are these different cross-sections? 

 

The ‘break lines’ shall be disregarded.  The cross section shall be consistent between the spine 

road and interior roads. 

Q10.  Will a budget or engineer’s estimate be provided? 
 

No. 

Q11.  Please clarify the stipulation of utilizing 30% East Hartford Residents. 
 

The goal of 30% of the work force being residents of Hartford or East Hartford is put forth by OPM 

consistent with requirements of the Adriaen’s Landing and Rentschler Field statutes.  It has been a 

consistent goal since the beginning of both these projects.  Contractors are required to make a 



good-faith effort to meet it as they would the standard work force goals for minorities and 

women.  

 

Q12.  If contaminated soils are to remain 4’ and below the proposed surface elevation, how will cuts 
in previously remediated areas be handled? 

 

Refer to ‘Notice to Contractor – Environmental’ and ‘Notice to Contractor – Excavated Material 

Management’.   

In the event that an unforeseen area of contamination is encountered, the contractor will be 

responsible to handle the contaminated soil once in order to haul it to the designated WSA for 

testing.  Disposal of the material will be the responsibility of UTC unless otherwise directed by the 

Environmental Oversight Consultant and negotiated with OPM in accordance with the Notice to 

Contractor. 

Q13.  How shall crews be trained for the handling of contaminated materials? 
 

Refer to “Notice to Contractor – Environmental” in the Technical Specifications for training 

requirements. 

Q.14. What clearing is the responsibility of the selected contractor?  What will the end result of the 
current clearing contractors work be? 

 

The selected contractor will be responsible for clearing only the areas specified in the bid package.  

The contractor will also be responsible for all of the site grubbing and stump removal.   

The current clearing contractor shall cut all trees to stump height and shall mow all vegetation to 

the limits shown on the ‘Clearing Plans – For Reference Only’. The current contractor shall remove 

all debris generated by his work.  Additionally, the current contractor is responsible for the 

removal of all dead or uprooted trees and brush.     

Q.15. With regard to the cast-in-place concrete walls, is damp proofing required only on the back of 
the walls, or is it required on top of the footings as well? 

 

To clarify the detail provided, damp proofing is required along the back of the stem and on the top 

of footing. 

Q16.  Please clarify the polluted/contaminated soil handling a bit more.  Please confirm that the 
only areas that require excavation and soil placement to maintain a 4 foot depth of cover are only 
areas designated ELUR 3, ELUR 4, ELUR 7, and ELUR 8 on sheet SPE-1.  Also confirm that lowering 



soils to maintain a 4 foot cover depth is not applicable in areas designated PS-A thru PS-L with the 
exception of when these overlap the aforementioned ELUR areas.  
  
 For Example: Please confirm the following procedure is acceptable for PS-G. 

I can strip the topsoil and re-use it in PS-G or other areas per the general notes. 

I can take soil from the cut area of PS-G and from boxing out the drive subgrade in PS-G and place it 

in the fill area of PS-G without burying anything 4 feet deep. 

If there were utility trenches in PS-G, the spoils could also be placed in the fill area of PS-G without 

burying it. 

Then I can replace the topsoil, seed, and gravel the drive. 

The areas that require “Special Excavation” are shown on SPE-1 and are limited to ELUR-3, ELUR-4, 

ELUR-7 and ELUR-8.  Lowering soils to maintain 4 foot depth is not necessary in the “Polluted Soil” 

areas, unless they overlap ELUR areas. 

The hypothetical question regarding PS-G is an accurate interpretation of the methods OPM 

wishes to see used. 

Q17.  We believe it was specified that materials from one section could not be reused in another 
section, i.e. materials from the Recreation Field cannot be moved to the North Klondike and vice 
versa.  Please clarify 
. 

Sheet PS-1 and PS-2 identify the locations where polluted soil may be reused, specifically oriented 

toward re-use in the originating area, followed by similar areas as designated in the notes for each 

location.  Prioritization and sequencing of work in the areas of those volumes will likely promote 

material balancing.  Recreation Field material is considered polluted soil and may only be reused 

within the Recreation Field dimensions.  Contractor is reminded that UTC will conduct soil 

remediation activities in coordination with the project.  That remediation must be completed 

before soil from that area may be relocated within the parcel.  The location of the intended UTC 

remediation is shown on Sheet No. LA-1.  

Q18.  Are any pavement markings required on the paved areas? 
 

There are no pavement markings included in the contract documents. 

Q19.  How shall the pumping of contaminated water be handled? 
 

Per the contract documents, the Contractor shall adequately dewater excavations as necessary 

to complete all project work.  Such work shall be included in the lump sum price bid for the work.  

Discharge shall be consistent with terms of CT DEP General Permit for the Discharge of 

Groundwater Remediation Wastewater Directly to Surface Water, as noted in Notice to 



Contractor-Permits. Based on the Contractor’s schedule, OPM will sample groundwater prior to 

deep excavation tasks in order to determine treatment requirements, if any.  If treatment is 

necessary, OPM will advise the Contractor of treatment components to be provided, based on 

flow rate to be indicated by Contractor.  The Contractor shall then submit a plan for treatment, 

including proposed equipment and methods, in order to comply with OPM’s directive.  

Compensation for equipment and labor necessary for treatment will be provided on a cost-plus 

basis as extra work in accordance with the contract provisions. 

Q20.  In some areas of the existing drainage swales our stumping contractor claims he was told 
there will be no sumps pulled between the present silt fence and the actual water…it seems that all 
stumps must be removed in order to complete any grading, seeding, or planting, please clarify. 

 

Stumps shall be removed where grading, seeding, or planting is shown on the plans. 

Q21.  There are still many high stumps and brush.  Will these be cut flush and all brush removed 
under the existing contract or will this be a responsibility under the next contract? 
 

See response to Q. 14. 

 

Q22.  Do "Amendments" that are posted to the website and labeled "updates" need to be recognized 

on the bid form as an "addendum" received? 

Yes.  However, please note that “Amendment 1” that was previously posted has been relabeled as 

“Addendum 1”.  We apologize for any confusion. 

Q23.  I do not see a “Vendor Profile Form” which is labeled as included in Appendix I. 

See the above item 3 “Missing and illegible documents.” 

 

Q24.  What is the “disclosure statement regarding conflict of interest”?  I see a form labeled Conflict 

of Interest Statute, “CT General Statutes Sec. I-85 (Formerly Sec. I-68) Interest in conflict with 

discharge of duties.  But there is no signature area or a place for Company Name. What type of a 

form should we use?  

No form is provided for this statement.  A simple notarized statement on letterhead stating whether 

the contractor is aware of any conflict is sufficient. 

Q25.  Information is conflicting about the “Affirmation of Receipt of State Ethics Laws Summary” 

form. Is it to be included with the bid form or submitted if awarded the project?  This form is not in the 

listed docs on pg 7 of Section 3 Notice to Bidders.  

The referenced form (OPM Form 6) must be submitted with the bid form. 

Q.26.  Is there a detail regarding the removing and resetting of chain link fence? 



Removal of fencing should be in accordance with accepted industry practices and standards of 

care.  Refer to Sheet No. SD-15 for installation details.  As a clarification, barbed wire on existing 

fencing shall not be reset but shall be disposed of. 

Q. 27.  Will CL&P shield their lines in the project area? 

The contractor is to coordinate utility line protection directly with CL&P and is responsible for the 

cost associated with the work. 

  



Attachment 1:  Draft Contract 

Attachment 2: OPM Vendor Profile,  

Attachment 3: Agency Vendor Form 

Attachment 4:  W-9 Request Form. 

Attachment 5: February 18 prebid sign-in sheet. 

 

 

 







































































































OPM VENDOR/BIDDER PROFILE SHEET (Form OPM-A-15, Jun-08) 
 

Complete Vendor/Bidder Name  
 

Federal Employer Id Number/SSN 

Vendor/Bidder Address 
 

Contact Person’s Name 
 

Telephone Number(s) 

 
AFFIRMATION OF VENDOR/BIDDER 

The undersigned Vendor/Bidder affirms and declares: 
 
1) That this proposal is executed and signed by said Vendor/Bidder with full knowledge and 

acceptance of the conditions as stated in the CONDITIONS Section of the RFP. 

    [   ]  YES   [   ]  NO [   ]  No RFP 

2) That the services shall be delivered to the agency at the prices proposed therein and within the 
timeframes as delineated in the RFP. 

    [   ]  YES   [   ]  NO [   ]  No RFP 

3) That neither the Vendor/Bidder and/or any company official nor any subcontractor to the 
Vendor/Bidder and/or any subcontractor company official has received any notices of debarment 
and/or suspension from contracting with the State of Connecticut or the Federal Government.  

    [   ]  YES   [   ]  NO 

4) That neither the Vendor/Bidder and/or any company official nor any subcontractor to the 
Vendor/Bidder and/or any subcontractor company official has received any notices of debarment 
and/or suspension from contracting with other states within the United States.  

    [   ]  YES   [   ]  NO 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT OF VENDOR/BIDDER 

With regard to a State contract as defined in Public Act 07-1 having a value in a calendar year of 
$50,000 or more or a combination or series of such agreements or contracts having a value of 
$100,000 or more, the undersigned expressly acknowledges: 

Receipt of the State Elections Enforcement Commission’s notice advising prospective state 
contractors of state campaign contribution and solicitation prohibitions. 

                                                      [    ]  YES       [    ]  NO 

Written Signature of Person Authorized to Bind the Vendor/Bidder 
Contractually 
 

Date 
 

Type or Print Name of Authorized Signator Title of Signator 

 

IF VENDOR/BIDDER IS A CORPORATION 

What is the authority of signator to bind the Vendor/Bidder contractually?   

[   ]  Corporate Resolution   [   ]  Corporate By Laws    [   ]  Other      (Please provide a written copy.) 

 

Is your business income reportable to the IRS?  [   ]  Yes    [   ]  No 
 

Are you a DAS certified minority owned business?   [   ]  Yes  [   ]  No   If YES, check all that apply. 

[   ]  Women Owned [   ]  Black [   ]  Hispanic [   ]  American Indian  

[   ]  Disabled [   ]  Iberian Peninsula [   ]  Asian [   ]  Other 

 
 

Subject of RFP Submission Due  Division Date Issued 

    

 



Fill-in Forms Information for the SP-26NB and W-9 Forms 
 

Overview 
There is no verification of the information you enter.  You are responsible for entering all information.   

Some information must be handwritten on the form. 
 

Software Requirements 
To view, complete and print the following fill-in PDF forms, you will need the freely available Adobe 

Reader software installed on your computer.  
 

Adobe Reader 
Adobe PDF files are a means to distribute publications and other information. To fill-in, download and 

print a PDF file, you will need to have the Adobe Reader software installed. You can download the 
latest version of Adobe Reader FREE from the Adobe Reader download page on Adobe's Web site.   

 

 
 

Completing the form on your PC 
When positioning the cursor on a fill-in area, the cursor will change appearance. 

The I-beam pointer  allows you to type text. 

The hand pointer  allows you to select a check box or button. 
Enter the appropriate data in each box or field. 

 
To move from one field to the next, press the Tab key. 

You can also use your mouse to move your cursor from field to field. Place your cursor in the field you 
want to fill in, then left-click. 

Some fields limit the maximum number of characters you can enter and may automatically advance 
to the next field. 

For additional help with fill-in forms, see the Adobe Reader's on-line help information at: 
http://www.adobe.com/support/reader/ 

 
Saving a Form 

When saving a file, be sure to use the Save function of Adobe Reader rather than the web browser's 
save. 

 
Printing a Form 

When printing Adobe PDF files from within your web browser, whether you are printing a blank form 
or printing a form after filling it in from your PC, use the print button at the left end of the special 

Adobe Acrobat tool bar, which appears immediately above the viewing window. 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE IS FOR INFORMATION ONLY AND DOES NOT NEED TO BE PRINTED NOR SUBMITTED WITH THE 
FOLLOWING FORMS.

 

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html�
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html
http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html
http://www.adobe.com/support/reader/


STATE OF CONNECTICUT - AGENCY VENDOR FORM 
IMPORTANT: ALL parts of this form must be completed, signed and returned by the vendor. 

 

 READ  OMPLETE AREFULLY SP-26NB-IPDF  Rev. 5/09 & C C  

 

COMPLETE VENDOR LEGAL BUSINESS NAME Taxpayer ID # (TIN):  
 
 

 SSN   FEIN 

 WRITE/TYPE SSN/FEIN NUMBER ABOVE 

BUSINESS NAME, TRADE NAME, DOING BUSINESS AS (IF DIFFERENT FROM ABOVE)   
 
BUSINESS ENTITY:   CORPORATION  LLC CORPORATION  LLC PARTNERSHIP  LLC SINGLE MEMBER ENTITY 
  NON-PROFIT  PARTNERSHIP   INDIVIDUAL/SOLE PROPRIETOR 
NOTE: IF INDIVIDUAL/SOLE PROPRIETOR, INDIVIDUAL’S NAME (AS OWNER) MUST APPEAR IN THE LEGAL BUSINESS NAME BLOCK ABOVE.
BUSINESS TYPE:   A. SALE OF COMMODITIES B. MEDICAL SERVICES C. ATTORNEY FEES D. RENTAL OF PROPERTY 
             (REAL ESTATE & EQUIPMENT) 
E. OTHER (DESCRIBE IN DETAIL) 
 

UNDER THIS TIN, WHAT IS THE PRIMARY TYPE OF BUSINESS YOU PROVIDE TO THE STATE? (ENTER LETTER FROM ABOVE) ➝ 
 

 
 

UNDER THIS TIN, WHAT OTHER TYPES OF BUSINESS MIGHT YOU PROVIDE TO THE STATE? (ENTER LETTER FROM ABOVE) ➝ 
 

 

NOTE: IF YOUR BUSINESS IS A PARTNERSHIP, YOU MUST ATTACH THE NAMES AND TITLES OF ALL PARTNERS TO YOUR BID SUBMISSION. 
NOTE: IF YOUR BUSINESS IS A CORPORATION, IN WHICH STATE ARE YOU INCORPORATED? 
VENDOR ADDRESS  STREET       CITY  STATE ZIP CODE 
 

 
Add Additional Business Address & Contact information on back of this form. 

VENDOR E-MAIL ADDRESS 
 
 

VENDOR WEB SITE 
 

REMITTANCE INFORMATION: INDICATE BELOW THE REMITTANCE ADDRESS OF YOUR BUSINESS.   SAME AS VENDOR ADDRESS ABOVE. 
REMIT ADDRESS  STREET                                          CITY                          STATE ZIP CODE 
 

 
CONTACT INFORMATION: NAME  (TYPE OR PRINT) 
 
1ST BUSINESS PHONE:  Ext. # HOME PHONE:  
2ND BUSINESS PHONE:  Ext. #� 1ST PAGER:  
CELLULAR: 2ND PAGER:  
1ST FAX NUMBER:� TOLL FREE PHONE:  
2ND FAX NUMBER:� TELEX:  
WRITTEN SIGNATURE OF PERSON AUTHORIZED TO SIGN PROPOSALS ON BEHALF OF THE ABOVE NAMED VENDOR 

 SIGN HERE 

DATE EXECUTED

TYPE OR PRINT NAME OF AUTHORIZED PERSON 
 
 

TITLE OF AUTHORIZED PERSON 

IS YOUR BUSINESS CURRENTLY A DAS CERTIFIED SMALL BUSINESS ENTERPRISE?   YES (ATTACH COPY OF CERTIFICATE)   NO 
IS YOUR BUSINESS CURRENTLY A CT DOT CERTIFIED DISADVANTAGED BUSINESS ENTERPRISE (DBE)?   YES    NO 
IF YOU ARE A STATE EMPLOYEE, INDICATE YOUR POSITION,  
AGENCY & AGENCY ADDRESS 

PURCHASE ORDER DISTRIBUTION: 
      (E-MAIL ADDRESS) 

NOTE: THE E-MAIL ADDRESS INDICATED IMMEDIATELY ABOVE WILL BE USED TO FORWARD PURCHASE ORDERS TO YOUR BUSINESS. 
 

 

ADD FURTHER BUSINESS ADDRESS, E-MAIL & CONTACT INFORMATION ON SEPARATE SHEET IF REQUIRED 



INSTRUCTIONS TO PRINTERS
FORM W-9, PAGE 1 of 4
MARGINS: TOP 13mm (1⁄ 2 "), CENTER SIDES. PRINTS: HEAD to HEAD
PAPER: WHITE WRITING, SUB. 20. INK: BLACK
FLAT SIZE: 216mm (81⁄ 2 ") 3 279mm (11")
PERFORATE: (NONE)
 

Give form to the
requester. Do not
send to the IRS.
 

Form W-9 Request for Taxpayer
Identification Number and Certification
 

(Rev. October 2007) 
Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service
 Name (as shown on your income tax return)

 

List account number(s) here (optional) 

Address (number, street, and apt. or suite no.) 

City, state, and ZIP code 
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2.
 

Taxpayer Identification Number (TIN) 

Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. The TIN provided must match the name given on Line 1 to avoid
backup withholding. For individuals, this is your social security number (SSN). However, for a resident
alien, sole proprietor, or disregarded entity, see the Part I instructions on page 3. For other entities, it is
your employer identification number (EIN). If you do not have a number, see How to get a TIN on page 3.

 

Social security number 

or 

Requester’s name and address (optional) 

Employer identification number Note. If the account is in more than one name, see the chart on page 4 for guidelines on whose
number to enter.
 Certification 

1. The number shown on this form is my correct taxpayer identification number (or I am waiting for a number to be issued to me), and
 I am not subject to backup withholding because: (a) I am exempt from backup withholding, or (b) I have not been notified by the Internal
Revenue Service (IRS) that I am subject to backup withholding as a result of a failure to report all interest or dividends, or (c) the IRS has
notified me that I am no longer subject to backup withholding, and
 

2. 

Certification instructions. You must cross out item 2 above if you have been notified by the IRS that you are currently subject to backup
withholding because you have failed to report all interest and dividends on your tax return. For real estate transactions, item 2 does not apply.
For mortgage interest paid, acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, contributions to an individual retirement
arrangement (IRA), and generally, payments other than interest and dividends, you are not required to sign the Certification, but you must
provide your correct TIN. See the instructions on page 4.
 
Sign
Here
 

Signature of
U.S. person ©

 
Date © 

General Instructions
 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2007) 

Part I
 

Part II
 

Business name, if different from above
 

Cat. No. 10231X

 

Check appropriate box:
 

Under penalties of perjury, I certify that:
 

13 
I.R.S. SPECIFICATIONS TO BE REMOVED BEFORE PRINTING 

DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT 

TLS, have you
transmitted all R 
text files for this 
cycle update?
 

Date
 

Action
 

Revised proofs
requested
 

Date
 

Signature
 

O.K. to print
 

Use Form W-9 only if you are a U.S. person (including a
resident alien), to provide your correct TIN to the person
requesting it (the requester) and, when applicable, to:
 1. Certify that the TIN you are giving is correct (or you are
waiting for a number to be issued),
 2. Certify that you are not subject to backup withholding, or

 3. Claim exemption from backup withholding if you are a U.S.
exempt payee. If applicable, you are also certifying that as a
U.S. person, your allocable share of any partnership income from
a U.S. trade or business is not subject to the withholding tax on
foreign partners’ share of effectively connected income.
 

3. I am a U.S. citizen or other U.S. person (defined below).
 

A person who is required to file an information return with the
IRS must obtain your correct taxpayer identification number (TIN)
to report, for example, income paid to you, real estate
transactions, mortgage interest you paid, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or
contributions you made to an IRA.
 

Individual/Sole proprietor
 

Corporation
 

Partnership
 

Other (see instructions) ©  

 

Note. If a requester gives you a form other than Form W-9 to
request your TIN, you must use the requester’s form if it is
substantially similar to this Form W-9.
 

 

● An individual who is a U.S. citizen or U.S. resident alien,
 ● A partnership, corporation, company, or association created or

organized in the United States or under the laws of the United
States,
 ● An estate (other than a foreign estate), or

 

Definition of a U.S. person. For federal tax purposes, you are
considered a U.S. person if you are:
 

Special rules for partnerships. Partnerships that conduct a
trade or business in the United States are generally required to
pay a withholding tax on any foreign partners’ share of income
from such business. Further, in certain cases where a Form W-9
has not been received, a partnership is required to presume that
a partner is a foreign person, and pay the withholding tax.
Therefore, if you are a U.S. person that is a partner in a
partnership conducting a trade or business in the United States,
provide Form W-9 to the partnership to establish your U.S.
status and avoid withholding on your share of partnership
income.
 The person who gives Form W-9 to the partnership for
purposes of establishing its U.S. status and avoiding withholding
on its allocable share of net income from the partnership
conducting a trade or business in the United States is in the
following cases:
 
● The U.S. owner of a disregarded entity and not the entity,

 

Section references are to the Internal Revenue Code unless
otherwise noted.
 

● A domestic trust (as defined in Regulations section
301.7701-7).
 

Limited liability company. Enter the tax classification (D=disregarded entity, C=corporation, P=partnership) © 

 

Exempt 
payee
 

Purpose of Form
 



INSTRUCTIONS TO PRINTERS
FORM W-9, PAGE 2 of 4
MARGINS: TOP 13 mm (1⁄ 2"), CENTER SIDES. PRINTS: HEAD to HEAD
PAPER: WHITE WRITING, SUB. 20. INK: BLACK
FLAT SIZE: 216 mm (81⁄ 2") 3 279 mm (11")
PERFORATE: (NONE)
 

Form W-9 (Rev. 10-2007) Page 2 

Sole proprietor. Enter your individual name as shown on your
income tax return on the “Name” line. You may enter your
business, trade, or “doing business as (DBA)” name on the
“Business name” line.
 

13 
I.R.S. SPECIFICATIONS TO BE REMOVED BEFORE PRINTING 

DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT — DO NOT PRINT 

Other entities. Enter your business name as shown on required
federal tax documents on the “Name” line. This name should
match the name shown on the charter or other legal document
creating the entity. You may enter any business, trade, or DBA
name on the “Business name” line.
 

If the account is in joint names, list first, and then circle, the
name of the person or entity whose number you entered in Part I
of the form.
 

Specific Instructions
 Name
 

Exempt Payee 
 

5. You do not certify to the requester that you are not subject
to backup withholding under 4 above (for reportable interest and
dividend accounts opened after 1983 only).
 Certain payees and payments are exempt from backup
withholding. See the instructions below and the separate
Instructions for the Requester of Form W-9.
 

Civil penalty for false information with respect to
withholding. If you make a false statement with no reasonable
basis that results in no backup withholding, you are subject to a
$500 penalty.
 Criminal penalty for falsifying information. Willfully falsifying
certifications or affirmations may subject you to criminal
penalties including fines and/or imprisonment.
 

Penalties
 Failure to furnish TIN. If you fail to furnish your correct TIN to a
requester, you are subject to a penalty of $50 for each such
failure unless your failure is due to reasonable cause and not to
willful neglect.
 

Misuse of TINs. If the requester discloses or uses TINs in
violation of federal law, the requester may be subject to civil and
criminal penalties.
 

If you are an individual, you must generally enter the name
shown on your income tax return. However, if you have changed
your last name, for instance, due to marriage without informing
the Social Security Administration of the name change, enter
your first name, the last name shown on your social security
card, and your new last name.
 

If you are exempt from backup withholding, enter your name as
described above and check the appropriate box for your status,
then check the “Exempt payee” box in the line following the
business name, sign and date the form.
 

4. The IRS tells you that you are subject to backup
withholding because you did not report all your interest and
dividends on your tax return (for reportable interest and
dividends only), or
 

3. The IRS tells the requester that you furnished an incorrect
TIN,
 

2. You do not certify your TIN when required (see the Part II
instructions on page 3 for details),
 

You will not be subject to backup withholding on payments
you receive if you give the requester your correct TIN, make the
proper certifications, and report all your taxable interest and
dividends on your tax return.
 

1. You do not furnish your TIN to the requester,
 

What is backup withholding? Persons making certain payments
to you must under certain conditions withhold and pay to the
IRS 28% of such payments. This is called “backup withholding.” 
Payments that may be subject to backup withholding include
interest, tax-exempt interest, dividends, broker and barter
exchange transactions, rents, royalties, nonemployee pay, and
certain payments from fishing boat operators. Real estate
transactions are not subject to backup withholding.
 

Payments you receive will be subject to backup
withholding if:
 

If you are a nonresident alien or a foreign entity not subject to
backup withholding, give the requester the appropriate
completed Form W-8.
 

Example. Article 20 of the U.S.-China income tax treaty allows
an exemption from tax for scholarship income received by a
Chinese student temporarily present in the United States. Under
U.S. law, this student will become a resident alien for tax
purposes if his or her stay in the United States exceeds 5
calendar years. However, paragraph 2 of the first Protocol to the
U.S.-China treaty (dated April 30, 1984) allows the provisions of
Article 20 to continue to apply even after the Chinese student
becomes a resident alien of the United States. A Chinese
student who qualifies for this exception (under paragraph 2 of
the first protocol) and is relying on this exception to claim an
exemption from tax on his or her scholarship or fellowship
income would attach to Form W-9 a statement that includes the
information described above to support that exemption.
 

Note. You are requested to check the appropriate box for your
status (individual/sole proprietor, corporation, etc.).
 

4. The type and amount of income that qualifies for the
exemption from tax.
 5. Sufficient facts to justify the exemption from tax under the
terms of the treaty article.
 

Nonresident alien who becomes a resident alien. Generally,
only a nonresident alien individual may use the terms of a tax
treaty to reduce or eliminate U.S. tax on certain types of income.
However, most tax treaties contain a provision known as a
“saving clause.” Exceptions specified in the saving clause may
permit an exemption from tax to continue for certain types of
income even after the payee has otherwise become a U.S.
resident alien for tax purposes.
 If you are a U.S. resident alien who is relying on an exception
contained in the saving clause of a tax treaty to claim an
exemption from U.S. tax on certain types of income, you must
attach a statement to Form W-9 that specifies the following five
items:
 1. The treaty country. Generally, this must be the same treaty
under which you claimed exemption from tax as a nonresident
alien.
 2. The treaty article addressing the income.

 3. The article number (or location) in the tax treaty that
contains the saving clause and its exceptions.
 

Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 1.
 

Foreign person. If you are a foreign person, do not use Form
W-9. Instead, use the appropriate Form W-8 (see Publication
515, Withholding of Tax on Nonresident Aliens and Foreign
Entities).
 

● The U.S. grantor or other owner of a grantor trust and not the
trust, and
 ● The U.S. trust (other than a grantor trust) and not the
beneficiaries of the trust.
 

Limited liability company (LLC). Check the “Limited liability
company” box only and enter the appropriate code for the tax
classification (“D” for disregarded entity, “C” for corporation, “P” 
for partnership) in the space provided.
 For a single-member LLC (including a foreign LLC with a
domestic owner) that is disregarded as an entity separate from
its owner under Regulations section 301.7701-3, enter the
owner’s name on the “Name” line. Enter the LLC’s name on the
“Business name” line.
 For an LLC classified as a partnership or a corporation, enter
the LLC’s name on the “Name” line and any business, trade, or
DBA name on the “Business name” line.
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Part I. Taxpayer Identification
Number (TIN)
 Enter your TIN in the appropriate box. If you are a resident
alien and you do not have and are not eligible to get an SSN,
your TIN is your IRS individual taxpayer identification number
(ITIN). Enter it in the social security number box. If you do not
have an ITIN, see How to get a TIN below.

 

How to get a TIN. If you do not have a TIN, apply for one
immediately. To apply for an SSN, get Form SS-5, Application
for a Social Security Card, from your local Social Security
Administration office or get this form online at www.ssa.gov. You
may also get this form by calling 1-800-772-1213. Use Form
W-7, Application for IRS Individual Taxpayer Identification
Number, to apply for an ITIN, or Form SS-4, Application for
Employer Identification Number, to apply for an EIN. You can
apply for an EIN online by accessing the IRS website at
www.irs.gov/businesses and clicking on Employer Identification
Number (EIN) under Starting a Business. You can get Forms W-7
and SS-4 from the IRS by visiting www.irs.gov or by calling
1-800-TAX-FORM (1-800-829-3676).
 If you are asked to complete Form W-9 but do not have a TIN,
write “Applied For” in the space for the TIN, sign and date the
form, and give it to the requester. For interest and dividend
payments, and certain payments made with respect to readily
tradable instruments, generally you will have 60 days to get a
TIN and give it to the requester before you are subject to backup
withholding on payments. The 60-day rule does not apply to
other types of payments. You will be subject to backup
withholding on all such payments until you provide your TIN to
the requester.
 

If you are a sole proprietor and you have an EIN, you may
enter either your SSN or EIN. However, the IRS prefers that you
use your SSN.
 If you are a single-member LLC that is disregarded as an
entity separate from its owner (see Limited liability company
(LLC) on page 2), enter the owner’s SSN (or EIN, if the owner
has one). Do not enter the disregarded entity’s EIN. If the LLC is
classified as a corporation or partnership, enter the entity’s EIN.
 Note. See the chart on page 4 for further clarification of name
and TIN combinations.
 

Note. Entering “Applied For” means that you have already
applied for a TIN or that you intend to apply for one soon.
 Caution: A disregarded domestic entity that has a foreign owner
must use the appropriate Form W-8.
 

9. A futures commission merchant registered with the
Commodity Futures Trading Commission,
 10. A real estate investment trust,

 11. An entity registered at all times during the tax year under
the Investment Company Act of 1940,
 12. A common trust fund operated by a bank under section
584(a),
 13. A financial institution,

 14. A middleman known in the investment community as a
nominee or custodian, or
 15. A trust exempt from tax under section 664 or described in
section 4947.
 

THEN the payment is exempt
for . . .
 

IF the payment is for . . .
 

All exempt payees except 
for 9
 

Interest and dividend payments
 

Exempt payees 1 through 13.
Also, a person registered under
the Investment Advisers Act of
1940 who regularly acts as a
broker
 

Broker transactions
 

Exempt payees 1 through 5
 

Barter exchange transactions
and patronage dividends
 

Generally, exempt payees 
1 through 7
 

Payments over $600 required
to be reported and direct
sales over $5,000
 
See Form 1099-MISC, Miscellaneous Income, and its instructions.
 However, the following payments made to a corporation (including gross
proceeds paid to an attorney under section 6045(f), even if the attorney is a
corporation) and reportable on Form 1099-MISC are not exempt from
backup withholding: medical and health care payments, attorneys’ fees, and
payments for services paid by a federal executive agency.
 

The chart below shows types of payments that may be
exempt from backup withholding. The chart applies to the
exempt payees listed above, 1 through 15.
 

1
 
2
 

7. A foreign central bank of issue,
 8. A dealer in securities or commodities required to register in

the United States, the District of Columbia, or a possession of
the United States,
 

2
 

The following payees are exempt from backup withholding:
 1. An organization exempt from tax under section 501(a), any

IRA, or a custodial account under section 403(b)(7) if the account
satisfies the requirements of section 401(f)(2),
 2. The United States or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities,
 3. A state, the District of Columbia, a possession of the United
States, or any of their political subdivisions or instrumentalities,
 4. A foreign government or any of its political subdivisions,
agencies, or instrumentalities, or
 5. An international organization or any of its agencies or
instrumentalities.
 Other payees that may be exempt from backup withholding
include:
 6. A corporation,

 

Generally, individuals (including sole proprietors) are not exempt
from backup withholding. Corporations are exempt from backup
withholding for certain payments, such as interest and dividends.
 Note. If you are exempt from backup withholding, you should
still complete this form to avoid possible erroneous backup
withholding.
 

1
 

1. Interest, dividend, and barter exchange accounts
opened before 1984 and broker accounts considered active
during 1983. You must give your correct TIN, but you do not
have to sign the certification.
 2. Interest, dividend, broker, and barter exchange
accounts opened after 1983 and broker accounts considered
inactive during 1983. You must sign the certification or backup
withholding will apply. If you are subject to backup withholding
and you are merely providing your correct TIN to the requester,
you must cross out item 2 in the certification before signing the
form.
 

Part II. Certification
 

For a joint account, only the person whose TIN is shown in
Part I should sign (when required). Exempt payees, see Exempt
Payee on page 2.

 

To establish to the withholding agent that you are a U.S. person,
or resident alien, sign Form W-9. You may be requested to sign
by the withholding agent even if items 1, 4, and 5 below indicate
otherwise.
 

Signature requirements. Complete the certification as indicated
in 1 through 5 below.
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Give name and EIN of:
 

For this type of account:
 

3. Real estate transactions. You must sign the certification.
You may cross out item 2 of the certification.
 

A valid trust, estate, or pension trust
 

6.
 

Legal entity 
4

 

4. Other payments. You must give your correct TIN, but you
do not have to sign the certification unless you have been
notified that you have previously given an incorrect TIN. “Other
payments” include payments made in the course of the
requester’s trade or business for rents, royalties, goods (other
than bills for merchandise), medical and health care services
(including payments to corporations), payments to a
nonemployee for services, payments to certain fishing boat crew
members and fishermen, and gross proceeds paid to attorneys
(including payments to corporations).
 

The corporation
 

Corporate or LLC electing
corporate status on Form 8832
 

7.
 

The organization
 

Association, club, religious,
charitable, educational, or other
tax-exempt organization
 

8.
 

5. Mortgage interest paid by you, acquisition or
abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt,
qualified tuition program payments (under section 529), IRA,
Coverdell ESA, Archer MSA or HSA contributions or
distributions, and pension distributions. You must give your
correct TIN, but you do not have to sign the certification.
 

The partnership
 

Partnership or multi-member LLC
 

9.
 

The broker or nominee
 

A broker or registered nominee
 

10.
 

The public entity
 

Account with the Department of
Agriculture in the name of a public
entity (such as a state or local
government, school district, or
prison) that receives agricultural
program payments
 

11.
 

Privacy Act Notice
 

List first and circle the name of the person whose number you furnish. If only one person
on a joint account has an SSN, that person’s number must be furnished.
 Circle the minor’s name and furnish the minor’s SSN.
 You must show your individual name and you may also enter your business or “DBA” 
name on the second name line. You may use either your SSN or EIN (if you have one),
but the IRS encourages you to use your SSN.
 List first and circle the name of the trust, estate, or pension trust. (Do not furnish the TIN
of the personal representative or trustee unless the legal entity itself is not designated in
the account title.) Also see Special rules for partnerships on page 1.

 
Note. If no name is circled when more than one name is listed,
the number will be considered to be that of the first name listed.
 

Disregarded entity not owned by an
individual
 

The owner
 

12.
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You must provide your TIN whether or not you are required to file a tax return. Payers must generally withhold 28% of taxable interest, dividend, and certain other
payments to a payee who does not give a TIN to a payer. Certain penalties may also apply.
 

Section 6109 of the Internal Revenue Code requires you to provide your correct TIN to persons who must file information returns with the IRS to report interest,
dividends, and certain other income paid to you, mortgage interest you paid, the acquisition or abandonment of secured property, cancellation of debt, or
contributions you made to an IRA, or Archer MSA or HSA. The IRS uses the numbers for identification purposes and to help verify the accuracy of your tax return.
The IRS may also provide this information to the Department of Justice for civil and criminal litigation, and to cities, states, the District of Columbia, and U.S.
possessions to carry out their tax laws. We may also disclose this information to other countries under a tax treaty, to federal and state agencies to enforce federal
nontax criminal laws, or to federal law enforcement and intelligence agencies to combat terrorism.
 

 

1
 

 

2
 
3
 

4
 

Secure Your Tax Records from Identity Theft
 Identity theft occurs when someone uses your personal
information such as your name, social security number (SSN), or
other identifying information, without your permission, to commit
fraud or other crimes. An identity thief may use your SSN to get
a job or may file a tax return using your SSN to receive a refund.
 

What Name and Number To Give the Requester
 Give name and SSN of:

 
For this type of account:
 

The individual
 

1.
 

Individual
 The actual owner of the account or,

if combined funds, the first
individual on the account
 

2.
 

Two or more individuals (joint
account)
 

The minor 
2

 
3.
 

Custodian account of a minor
(Uniform Gift to Minors Act)
 The grantor-trustee 

1

 
4.
 

a. The usual revocable savings
trust (grantor is also trustee)
 The actual owner 

1

 
b. So-called trust account that is
not a legal or valid trust under
state law
 The owner 

3

 
5.
 

Sole proprietorship or disregarded
entity owned by an individual
 

Call the IRS at 1-800-829-1040 if you think your identity has
been used inappropriately for tax purposes.
 

1
 

To reduce your risk:
 ● Protect your SSN,
 ● Ensure your employer is protecting your SSN, and
 ● Be careful when choosing a tax preparer.
 

Victims of identity theft who are experiencing economic harm
or a system problem, or are seeking help in resolving tax
problems that have not been resolved through normal channels,
may be eligible for Taxpayer Advocate Service (TAS) assistance.
You can reach TAS by calling the TAS toll-free case intake line
at 1-877-777-4778 or TTY/TDD 1-800-829-4059.
 Protect yourself from suspicious emails or phishing
schemes. Phishing is the creation and use of email and
websites designed to mimic legitimate business emails and
websites. The most common act is sending an email to a user
falsely claiming to be an established legitimate enterprise in an
attempt to scam the user into surrendering private information
that will be used for identity theft.
 The IRS does not initiate contacts with taxpayers via emails.
Also, the IRS does not request personal detailed information
through email or ask taxpayers for the PIN numbers, passwords,
or similar secret access information for their credit card, bank, or
other financial accounts.
 If you receive an unsolicited email claiming to be from the IRS,
forward this message to phishing@irs.gov. You may also report
misuse of the IRS name, logo, or other IRS personal property to
the Treasury Inspector General for Tax Administration at
1-800-366-4484. You can forward suspicious emails to the
Federal Trade Commission at: spam@uce.gov or contact them at
www.consumer.gov/idtheft or 1-877-IDTHEFT(438-4338).

 Visit the IRS website at www.irs.gov to learn more about
identity theft and how to reduce your risk.
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